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The Kimbrough-Hehr House is situated on level terrain several hundred feet from 
U. S. Highway 62. In close proximity to the dwelling is a one-story slave quarters 
and a smokehouse. The commercial structure included within this nomination is 
located just off U.S. 62, several hundred feet from the main house.

Constructed ca. 1840, the Kimbrough-Hehr House is a two-story brick Greek Revival 
structure on a fieldstone foundation. The dwelling is composed of two separate 
buildings connected by a roofed open passageway. The main building is two-story, 
originally one room deep, and containing six rooms and a rear veranda. The 
smaller structure, which originally served as the kitchen with servant quarters 
upstairs, is a two-story building one room deep.

Laid in common bond, the southwest facade, which was the rear of house when 
constructed, is five bays wide with a central entrance. All windows except for 
the first floor window to the right of the entrance are six-over-six pane. The 
entrance is sheltered by an iron portico added within the last thirty years. 
Above the entrance is a window set lower than the second floor windows. The wall 
is assymetrical with no end window on the southeast end of the first floor.

The structure is covered by a gabled roof with a modillioned cornice. The building 
has two brick center ridge-line chimneys, one at the northwest end and the other 
slightly off-center.

As originally constructed, the house was one room deep with a room to each side 
of the central hallway. The first floor rooms contain original mantels, simple 
and unadorned, reflecting the Greek Revival period of the house. There are also 
original mantels in the upstairs rooms. The flooring is poplar. The ceilings 
throughout are ten feet high.

Connected to the main house is a two-story, two-room brick structure. The down­ 
stairs room was a kitchen with a fireplace (five foot hearth), This building 
also has poplar flooring and ten foot ceilings.

In 1890 several additions were made to the main house. Two rooms and a two-story 
frame veranda were added to the original front of the house. It is believed that the 
main entrance, as it is today, was reversed by Hr« Kinney who purchased the 
property after World War H,

A one-story brick slave quarters is located approximately fifty feet to the northwest 
of the main house. It contains one large room with, brick end chimneys. It has 
been altered by the previous owner for use as a studio, The original floor was 
also bricked and the original porch was enclosed, A room with small bathroom 
was added to the rear.
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Located on the old Lexington to Covington Road the Kiiribrough-Hehr House remains as 
a good example of a popular house form and style and is especially significant because 
of the survival of a complete collection of outbuildings. Located on the same 
parcel of land, which has been under one ownership for over seventy-five years, 
is the Broadwell Store. The structure, built c. 1820,. is one of the few surviving 
early commercial buildings in the state.

The land on which the Kimbrough-Hehr House is situated was originally part of a 
large land grant issued to Samuel MeMillan, one of the first settlers in the county, 
by Governor Patrick Henry of Virginia. McMillan first came to this area, which 
would later become Harrison County, in 1776, sixteen years before Kentucky became 
a state, and seventeen years before th-e creation of the county. In 1784 he 
began construction of an outstanding stone house which was completed in 1789. 2 
His house, which is the oldest stone dwelling in the county, survives today.

McMillan's only daughter Mary married Asbury Broadwell, son of Samuel Broadwell, 
who also was an early settler in this region.^ About 1820 Broadwell constructed 
a one-story brick commercial structure, which in time was weather-boarded. Broadwell 
rented the brick building, which was situated on the old Lexington to Covington 
Road, to Misters Cox and Thornton who operated a tavern.^

In 1840 John Kimbrough,purchased several hundred acres of land from Broadwell, and 
built the two-story brick house, as well as the one-story brick slave quarters 
and brick smokehouse.5 Several years later, ICimbrough sold the house and land 
to the Berry family who retained ownership until 1912-13 when the property was 
sold to the present owner's grandfather.^

By 1840 when ICimbrough built his brick house, a small but thriving community had 
developed in the area. The town of Broadwell, named in honor of the Broadwells, 
was situated on the old Lexington to Covington Road, which linked the Bluegrass 
region to northern Kentucky and Cincinnati across the Ohio River.7

Besides the brick structure built by Asbury, which served as a tavern and then 
a general store, the community had a blacksmith shop, a post office, and in later

(continued)
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Constructed at the same time as the slave quarters was the brick smokehouse, located 
about twenty feet to the southwest of the residence. Several hundred feet in 
front of the dwelling and outbuildings is the ca. 1820 one-story brick commercial 
structure, which has been weatherboarded. The structure is two rooms^ deep with 
poplar flooring. The front room has a ceiling flue for a heating stove, and the 
back room has a large fireplace with _an ornate Federal mantel. The structure 
has two chimneys, one located near the center and the other near the rear of the 
building.

The two front windows are six-over-six pane with shutters, 
with horizontal beaded poplar boards.

The walls are paneled

The nominated acreage comprises the main house, slave quarters, smokehouse and 
commercial structure,, U.S. 62 demarking the southeast extent of the boundary.
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years a church. Broadwell flourished until the completion of the railroad to 
Cynthiana. As the railroad lessened the importance of the Lexington to Covington 
Road, the prosperity of Broadwell diminished.

After World War II Henry Kinney, a landscape architect, purchased the farm, 
house, outbuildings and commercial structure. During his period of ownership 
Kinney landscaped the area around the house. Recently George Hehr, whose 
grandfather had owned the farm and house, purchased the property, and is in the 
process of restoring the brick dwelling.
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FOOTNOTES

iRichard Co 11 ins, History of Kentucky, 
Kentucky Land Grants, p. 99.

pp. 326-27; Willard Jillson, The

, pp. 326-27; William Perrin, History of Bourbon, Scott, Harrison, 
and Nicholas Counties, Kentucky; Katherine Wilson, This Old House, pp. 2-3; 
Robert Heinmann, First Census of Kentucky, p. 64.

^Harrison County Tax Assessment Record for 1794 and 1805; Heinman, p. 14 ; 
Perrin, p. 327; Wilson, p. 3.

^Harrison County Tax Assessment Records for 1810, 1815, 1818-1820; Perrin, 
p. 327; 1810 Federal Census of Kentucky, p. 918.

^Harrison County Tax Assessment Record for 1840; Perrin, p. 660; Wilson, p. 7.

"John Kimbrough f s family gained notoriety in Harrison County and the state 
when in 1866, his son Alec Kimbrough, a former Union soldier, fought a duel 
with Captain Joseph Desha, an ex-Conferate officer and grandson of former Governor 
Joseph Desha, in the last duel in Kentucky. Dueling had been outlawed in Kentucky 
by this time, and according to the law principals, seconds and surgeons were 
subject to a $500 fine or 12 months imprisonment for the challenging side, 
while the person accepting the challenge was subject to a $250 fine or a 
six month prison sentence. In the early morning of March 26, the two met in a 
pasture on the James K. Duke farm on the Scott-Fayette County line. Desha 
escaped unharmed, but Kimbrough was shot in the right hip and as a result 
walked with a limp the rest of his life. (J. Wins ton Coleman, Famous Kentucky 
Duels, P-123J Wilson, p. 7.)

7perrin, p. 327.
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